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Dear Ms Gell

Thank you for the opportunity to make comment:

Provisions of the FAMILY LAW AMENDMENT BILL 2003

Given that we can’t make comment re joint custody (having recently been reassured by relevant Canberra politicians that this issue would not be approved barely two months ago), we were devastated to hear the Prime Minister making comment and responding to the (male) lobby groups: could you please pass on the contact details of the appropriate people for us to make comment? We welcome the full implementation of the Family Law Council (2002) Family Law and Child Protection, Canberra, AGPS.

We also call for amendments to section 68F of the Family Law Act to require that 'safety' is the threshold determinant of a child's best interests when violence or abuse has been raised as an issue in the case and its use has been established on the balance of probabilities.  When violence is established as an issue, judges should be required to pursue a structured risk assessment similar to that used in the Guardianship Act in New Zealand.

All too often our clients (sole parents) find it difficult to parent because of acts of violence towards them / their children and live in a state of siege and fear: Restraint Orders often don’t prevent violence and are (for some people) difficult to organise (eg lack of child-care / confidence / knowledge / legal representation).

Section 16B(4) of the Guardianship Act creates a rebuttable presumption against custody or unsupervised access being given to a perpetrator of domestic violence unless the Family Court can be satisfied that the child will be safe during such arrangements. The section states that if allegations are made that one of the parties has used violence against the child who is the subject of the proceedings, or a child of the family, or against the other party to the proceedings, the Family Court must "as soon as practicable" determine whether such allegations have been proved. The burden of proof is the civil balance of probability standard (50.01%). If the Court is satisfied that "violence" (defined in the statute as physical and / or sexual violence but extended by case law to include psychological violence as well) has occurred, the section creates a rebuttable presumption, mandating that the Court shall not make any order giving custody or unsupervised access to a violent party unless the Court is satisfied that the child will be safe. As with all rebuttable presumptions, once the Court is satisfied that "violence" has occurred, the onus shifts to the violent party who must then demonstrate that the child will be safe during visitation arrangements. Reflecting the provisions of the New Zealand Domestic Violence Act, court decisions have held that a single act of abuse may trigger the rebuttable presumption. As well, acts which in isolation may appear minor or trivial but which form a pattern of behaviour also may trigger the presumption.

There seems to be a myth that a parent who is violent to their (ex)spouse is NOT abusive to their child(ren) – in reality living with violence (and fear of violence) whether to a parent or self is totally devastating to a child on every level. Many violent ex-partners continue emotional and psychological harassment using their children as convenient pawns: rebuttable presumption would greatly alleviate this disastrous situation.

Section 16B(5) provides a list of statutory criteria which must be used by the Judge in deciding whether the child will be "safe". These mandated factors make risk assessment the central feature of custody/access disputes where domestic violence has been present.  They include the nature and seriousness of the violence; how recently and frequently such violence has occurred; the likelihood of further violence; the physical or emotional harm caused to the child by the violence; the opinions of the other party and the child as to safety; and any steps the violent party has taken to prevent further violence occurring.  The occurrence of such violence is the central issue of the court's initial inquiry and the assessment of the risk of further violence occurring determines the shape of the custody/access order.
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